
Tuesday, November 15, 2005 

 

7:00 p.m. 

Board Meeting 

 

Pierce School Bennington 

 

Minutes 

 

Board                 Administration 

Joe MacGregor, Tom Welden              Keith Burke, Supt. 
Craig Hicks, Stewart Brock              Paul Bartolomucci, Asst. Supt.  
Dan Harper, Bill McKinnon              Marian Alese, Bus. Admin. 
Ken Young, Nan Fornal              Sue Copley, PES 
Christy Greene, Beverly Bacon                        Sue Dell, CVHS 
Butch Estey, Gail Cromwell              Dick Dunning, SMS 
                 Deb Parker, GBS 
                 Rick Nannicelli, GBS 
Beth San Martino, CVEA              Deb Lesure, AES 
                 MaryEllen Stanley, FES 
                 Tim Iwanowicz, GES 
                 Pam Matthews, BES 
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Joe MacGregor called the meeting to order at 7:02.  After the pledge, Bill McKinnon 
announced that he was recording the meeting.  Pam Matthews thanked everyone for coming.  
She said that BES runs on the everyday belief that everyone has a special gift.  She 
acknowledged that BES has wonderful teachers, all well qualified.  Pam introduced her 
teaching staff, guidance counselor and the AGIFT Program Coordinator, Mrs. Bennett, who 
has brought the teaching of American sign language to BES.  First and second grade students 
are here to share a song by singing and signing that describes the BES philosophy titled ÒThis 
Little Light of MineÓ.  Refreshments will be served compliments of the students of the 
AGIFT program. 
 

Joe MacGregor said that he had two things to share.  First, the Board has taken action by 
asking Brenda Marschok to record the minutes of School Board meetings so that Marian can 
be more actively involved in the meetings.  Secondly, he introduced Beverly Bacon as the 
new Board member representing Peterborough.  Tom Welden added that Brenda Marschok 
was also taking minutes for the SelectmanÕs Advisory Committee as well so that a more 
active participation can take place from members of the committee. 
 
 
 

1. 
 
 



 
 

2.  Minutes (Board Vote Required) 

a. November 1, 2005 
Nan Fornal corrected page 4, under Communications to read as follows:   
ÒJoe MacGregor said that Hope HuntÕs position as the ConVal representative to the 
NH School Board Association is still openÓ 

      Also, item 6, Old Business, on page 4 should be amended to read as follows: 
      ÒBeverly Bacon has been appointed to Hope HuntÕs position as the representative for   
      the Town of PeterboroughÕs School Board.Ó 

                 Joe MacGregor asked if there were any other questions? 
     Motion to approve as amended by Tom Welden.  Seconded by Butch Estey. 
     Stewart Brock abstained.  Approved as amended. 

 
 

3.  Public Comment 

     None.   
 

 

4.  Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business 

a. Request to Accept a Gift or Donation (Board Vote Required) 

1. Antrim Elementary School has received from the LyonÕs Club a hearing machine 
valued at $859 for the purpose of school screenings 

2. Dublin Consolidated School has received from MSA Group 6 cases of copy paper 
valued at $265 

3. Dublin Consolidated has received from the Garden Club of Dublin a check in the 
amount of $500 for the purpose of the 5th grade camp 

4. Great Brook School has received from Paul Corcoran of Hancock two 5 drawer 
cabinets valued at $60 for the purpose of storage 

            Motion to accept with gratitude by Butch Estey and second by Dan Harper.           

                       Unanimous. 
 

b. Monthly Events Calendar 

The following changes were made to the November 2005 ConVal School District 
Calendar: 
November 21st Ð Personnel will meet at the SAU Office at 7:00 p.m. 
November 28th Ð Education Committee at the SAU Office at 7:00 p.m. 
The Education Committee meeting was missing on the December 2005 calendar.  
December 12th will be the meeting time at 7:00 p.m. at the SAU.  The Budget Committee 
will meet on December 19th.   
Keith Burke said that the road kill lunch meeting took place and that five of the nine 
towns attended in addition to other highway personnel.  Good comments about this 
meeting were heard.   
 

2. 
 



 
Joe MacGregor said that the purpose of the meeting was to coordinate how school 
cancellations are determined. 
Gail asked for clarification about the date of the December School Board Meeting on the 
calendar.   
The December 20th  meeting should be deleted from the calendar.  The meeting listed on 
December 13th at GES is the correct meeting date. 
Joe MacGregor said that the reason only one meeting is taking place in December is so 
that the Board could move out actively in their communities.  Each town representative(s) 
would schedule a meeting in their own communities individually.  Board members were 
left to schedule and select dates on their own.  Each member will schedule a meeting, 
those with multiple board members will schedule a meeting together.   
Stewart Brock shared some general information.  If the night of meetings could be 
established now, newspapers that are present to report could help publicize and make 
townspeople aware. 
Bill McKinnon said that AntrimÕs meeting date would be December 6th at the Town Hall 
from 6:30 Ð 9:00 p.m. 
Stewart Brock said that Francestown would meet on December 8th  from 6:00 Ð 9:00 at the 
Town Library. 
Dan Harper said that HancockÕs meeting would take place on December 7th at the Town 
Library from  6:00 Ð 9:00.  He requested that a poster be printed to publicize all of the 
meeting dates. 
Keith said he would produce a flyer. 
Joe MacGregor said that the newspapers could help us to publicize these dates. 
Dan Harper said that one flyer with all of the dates would be great. 
Greenfield would hold their meeting on December 6th from 7:00 Ð9:00 at the Town 
Library.   
Peterborough would hold itÕs meeting on December 5th from 7:00 Ð9:00 at the Town 
House. 
Gail Cromwell said that on December 1st, Temple would have their meeting at 7:00 pm at 
the Town Hall. 
Sharon will hold their meeting on December 6th from 6:00 Ð 8:00 during the Town Clerk 
hours at the Brick School House. 
Christy Greene said that it was unlikely that she would attend the meeting due to 
scheduling conflicts. 
Paul Bartolomucci asked if we wanted to move meeting dates to accommodate these 
meetings? 
Keith said that the Education Committee could be moved from December 5th to December 
12th to accommodate. 
Keith asked the towns that have not yet set a date to call the SAU. 
Joe MacGregor asked those to set the dates by the end of this week and to notify the SAU. 
 

 

 

3. 
 



 

5.  Reports 

a. Principal 

Pam Matthews said that she was thankful for the parent participation this evening.   
Dick Dunning reported that the SMS Robotics Team took the Directors Award which 
is the equivalent of first place.   
Sue Copley said that PES is looking forward to hosting Guided Reading Workshops.  
In addition, on Friday, the PTO will sponsor Òmovie nightÓ and dinner said Sue 
Copley.   
Deb Lesure said that an author/illustrator came and reached kids who promised to 
rewrite and rewrite.  Lunch with Heros is now being sponsored.  Police officers came 
and the kids just loved it.    
Tim Iwanowicz said that this Friday night is ÒFamily Fun NightÓ.  A MAPS testing 
presentation will take place where parents can come in and try out the program.   
Rick Nannicelli said that Mix-It-Up Day took place which helps teach tolerance.  
Students had to choose a candy bar and report to the lunch table that matched their 
candy bar.  Students had to sit with students they normally would not have. 
In addition, a staff member is leaving for Japan on Sunday 
MaryEllen Stanley said that unlike the middle schools who have sports teams, they 
have their first competition in Hollis with the LEGO league.  She said that she and the 
students are very excited! 
Joe MacGregor asked if anyone was doing cup stacking?  Pam Matthews said that 
BES was cup stacking.  Joe said that it is very exciting.   

 

b. Teacher 

Beth said that the hot topic is that of  Òhighly qualifiedÓ teachers.  She said that we 
are keeping on top of it. 
Keith said he has met with State Officials.  A piece is being published in December.  
All of our teachers are highly qualified and we want to be able to document that. 
Christy appreciates Keith saying that out loud and added that it is a big stress for 
teachers.  She said that she applauds Keith for saying it. 
 

c. Student 

None 
 

d. Education 

The Education Committee met on November 7th .  One main topic took place.  Sue 
Dell gave a presentation on the new minimum state requirements for graduation.  
Most of the meeting time was spent on this.  Differentiating diplomas was discussed.   
Christy Greene said that she would try to get information on the web site. 
The Curriculum Committee was working on this topic.    
 
 

4. 
 

 



 
At the Education Committee meeting on November 28th the new health care 
curriculum will be discussed. 
Seth Chatfield of the Monadnock Ledger asked for a brief explanation of the different 
diplomas.   
Sue Dell said that there are different standards to achieve a diploma.  A regular 
diploma requires 20 credits.  ConVal currently requires 26 credits.  An ADP diploma 
can also be earned.  In addition, a Certificate of Completion is also an option. 

 

e. Budget and Property 

Craig Hicks said the group met on November 8th .  At the meeting, Marian handed out 
bus contract sheets which detailed the number of students per bus.  A discussion took 
place about how we might save money in the future.  The group will see what can be 
done to negotiate with Laidlaw Transportation.   
Discussion on revenue also took place.  How Peterborough and ConVal were running 
their Operating Budget was discussed.  Revenue growth information was requested 
from each member for the period of the last 5 years as well as the number of building 
permits issued.     
The group discussed advertising policies.  Marian agreed to put together different 
policies.   
Tom asked for a capital budget plan.  Gail mentioned solar energy and said she would 
look into other alternatives because of cost effectiveness. 
Craig would like information at the next Budget and Property meeting on December 
19th.   

 

f. Personnel 

Dan said they will meet next on November 21st.   
 

g. Staff Development 

Ken Young said the group met yesterday and approved a workshop at CVHS for Pre-
Cal and Calculus all done at no charge by staff or a team of staff.  Some staff 
immediately signed up for workshop 

 

h. Steering 

None 
 

i. Communications 

Nan Fornal said the group met on November 8th.  Three things were on the agenda.   
She passed out a handout. (See attachment # 1).        
She said that the Keene School District published an insert that goes in the Keene 
Sentinel.  She has been in contact with local newspaper to look at the possibility of 
doing this with newspapers published in our district in addition to Keene. 
 
 

5. 
 



 
The group talked about communication between Board and staff.  Our 
communication should be through the Superintendent.     
A lot of communication is going on at different levels, more than we thought, she 
said.  Beth SanMartino wanted to make sure that teachers knew that they can 
communicate with her to get to the School Board.   
Tom said a number of towns have newsletters that the Board could get a prewritten 
copy of.  An article could go in with a School Board update.  We would need to know 
what the deadline dates were for inclusion. 

 

6.  Old Business 

a. Town Meetings Schedule   

This item was discussed earlier in this meeting said Joe MacGregor. 
 

b.  Status of Policy Review by NHSBA 

     Keith Burke said the recommendation should be received by the first week in 
     December.  The recommendation will come back with policies that we already have   
     that meet the State requirements as well as those we should add.  The Board would 
     then review and approve the final draft. 
     Joe asked if it will itemize the items?  Keith said it will include sample policies and 
     that current RSAÕs will be checked.  Our policy manual is remarkably better than most 
     received said Mr. Burke. 
     Seth Chatfield asked if they were nonbinding recommendations? 
    Joe confirmed that they are nonbonding and that we can choose which to include and 
    exclude.   

 

7.  New Business 

a. Selectmen’s Advisory Committee Letter 

A letter from the ConVal SelectmenÕs Advisory Committee was distributed.  (See 
attachment #2).   
Joe MacGregor said that the Articles of Agreement document is key to our district.  
There is some paperwork to share on the current Articles of Agreement (See 
attachment # 3).    The letter itself has been slightly revised due to error.  Selectman 
made corrections in Article # 11. 
Joe MacGregor said that no action is required this evening.  He requested that 
members read through the documents and be prepared at the next meeting in 
December.  (See attachments # 4 and # 5) 
Bill McKinnon said that he was bothered by the last sentence in the letter of 
attachment # 2 to Selectmen.  In saying that Article #8 was put aside due to Òlack of 
interestÓ he felt  that there was a considerable amount of interest.  Bill McKinnon said 
that he was afraid that they will try to push Article #2 to change the number of votes 
required. 
 
 

6. 
 



 
 
Bill McKinnon said that he is against item #2 in Article # 18.  Tom Welden suggested 
that each Board member read through the document and comment at the next Board 
meeting.  Joe MacGregor asked that members please be prepared at the December 
meeting.   

 

b. Program Evaluation Process 

Tom Welden said that we have not been clear to Keith about what we are looking at.  
Looking to more clearly define.  First, is that the process be more budget oriented and 
more high school oriented. 
Secondly, that we have a more abbreviated process to identify the program cost for 
the high school budget.  Due to population changes, programs can be outsourced or 
we can look at alternative ways to have programs.   
The first step would be for Keith Burke to do a cost analysis of program budgets and 
then we could take a look at it.  Stewart Brock thought it was very reasonable to get 
the numbers around what things cost. 
Christy Greene said that it seems logical, for example if we review language that we 
should take a look at both the middle schools and the high school because both are 
impacted.  The Health curriculum for example would have a district wide impact. 
Tom Welden said that a district wide review is in order to make sure it is in line with 
curriculum. 
Gail Cromwell said a concept in search of a committee is the calendar.  She asked for 
a suggestion as to which committee this item should go to?     
Tom Welden asked Keith Burke.  Keith said he is still trying to talk to Mascenic and 
Jaffrey-Rindge.  This needs to be done as a unit because of the ATC.   
Keith clarified that making radical changes in the calendar will affect both Jaffrey-
Rindge and Mascenic because they are sending schools.  Coordinating calendars is 
important.  All should be and have been at the table when discussing.   
Seth Chatfield asked about Program Evaluation.   
Tom Welden said that Program Evaluation is pretty well spelled out. 
Special Education is the first program being gone through.  A snapshot of the high 
school will be looked at for the balance of this year. 
The State of New Hampshire does not necessarily say that 180 days vs. the number of 
hours is a requirement.  Commonality is needed between the schools.  Tom Welden 
said that this is extremely complex and all are interested in discussing. 
Joe MacGregor asked if there were any questions or comments?   
Christy Greene asked if we wanted to put this on the agenda? 
Joe MacGregor said that we should discuss first as a joint meeting.   
Tom suggested that we discuss before the next Board meeting to start the process or 
before December 13th. 
Seth asked what the impetus was behind the possible calendar change? 
Joe said this discussion has taken place in prior years.  Date changes, winter  
 

7. 
 



 
 
 
vacations, holidays and start dates have been discussed as well as other dates.  We are 
looking to see if adjustments can be made to fit, not that anything is wrong, but is it 
working the best that it can. 
Tom said that potential savings could take place because of calendar changes.  
Economic changes in transportation and heating can be seen due to changes. 
 

      Christy Greene said that last Friday was First Friday in Peterborough.  She had  
           attended an exhibition of ConVal art students at EA Bishop.  She said that it was  
           inspiring and she recommended that it be seen.   
 

8.  Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required) 

Marian Alese certified that manifests 51 Ð56, totaling $283,926.41 and SubRun 109 Ð 110, 
totaling $13,264.87 and Payroll totaling $840,756.64 have been reviewed and found to be 
proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods or services received 
and have been properly processed prior to their submittal to the School Board.   
Motion to approve as presented by Craig Hicks and seconded by Butch Estey.  

Unanimous.   

 

9.  Non-Public Session:  RSA 91-A:3, IIc 

a. Personnel 

      None.   
 

    Ken Young motioned to conclude the School Board meeting.  Christy Greene seconded at   

     8:20 pm.  Board polled – passed.  Roll call vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

     Brenda Marschok 

 

 

 

 

8. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


